" THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL

Park and Planning Commission

COMMISSION
MEETING

June 19, 2019

10:00 a.m. — 12:00 p.m.

Montgomery Regional Office
Auditorium
8787 Georgia Avenue
Silver Spring, Maryland 20910



This page intentionally left blank.



ITEM1

MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

MEETING AGENDA
Wednesday, June 19, 2019
MRO (Auditorium)
10:00 a.m. — 12 noon

Approval of Commission Agenda (10:00 a.m.)

Approval of Commission Minutes (10:05 a.m.)

a)
b)

c)

Open Session —May 1, 2019
Closed Session — May 1, 2019
Open Session — Special Commission Meeting June 6, 2019

General Announcements (10:05 a.m.)

a)
b)

June 1s National Caribbean American Heritage Month
June 1s Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and Queer (LGBTQ) Pride Month

Committee Minutes/Board Reports (For Information Only) (10:15 a.m.)

a)
b)

¢) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Meeting — Open Session — March 5, 2019

d)

Executive Committee Meeting — Open Session — June 5, 2019
Executive Committee Meeting — Closed Session — June 5, 2019

Emplovees” Retirement System Special Board of Trustees Meeting — April 26, 2019

Action and Presentation Items (10:15 am.)

a)
b)

c)
d)

e)

g)

h)

i)

»

k)

)

Resolution #19-05, Adoption of the Approved Veirs Mill Master Plan (McVary)

Resolution #19-13, Adoption of the Approved MARC Rail Plan (Weaver)

(+*) Page 1

(+*) Page 3
(++%)
(+* LD

(+) Page 11
(++)

(+) Page 15
(+) Page 19

(+*)Page 21

(+*)Page 37

Resolution #19-14, Land Exchange between M-NCPPC and City of Takoma Park (Sandberg) (+*)Page 45

Resolution #19-12, Adoption of the Fiscal Year 2020 Commission Operating Budget and
Capital Budget (Kroll)

Resolution #19-10, FY20 Wage Adjustments for Certain Non-Represented Merit System
and Term Contract Employees (Bennett)

Resolution #19-06, FY20 Wage Reopener Agreement for MCGEQO Bargainming Unit
Members (Bennett)

Resolution #19-07, FY20 Wage Reopener Agreement for Fraternal Order of Police
Bargaining Unit Members (Bennett)

Resolution #19-08, FY20 Pay Increment Adjustment for Seasonal/Intermittent
Employees (Bennett)

Resolution #19-09, FY20 Cost of Living Adjustment for Park Police Candidates (Bennett)
Resolution #19-04, Health Insurance Premium Holiday for FY20 — Date TBD (Kroll)
Budget Transfer for Reclassification Marker (Kroll)

Resolution #19-11, Approval of Fiscal Year 2020 115 Trust/OPEB - Emplover Contribution
for Retiree Group Health Insurance (Zimmerman)

m) Revised Salary Savings Memo for Finance Department (Zimmerman)

O

(+*)Page 59

(+*)Page 79

(+*)Page 81

(+*)Page 83

(+*)Page 85

(+*)Page 87
(+*)Page 89

(+*)Page 91

(+*)Page 93

(+*)Page 95

ACTION

Motion

Second



ACTION
Motion | Second
n) Approve Daniel Singh has the Montgomery County Open Trustee to the Board of

Trustees for the Term Ending June 30, 2022 (Rose) (+*)Page 97
0) Approve the Reappointment of Amy Millar as the Municipal and County Government

Employees Orgamzation Representative for the Term Ending June 30, 2022 (Rose) (+*)Page 98
p) Approve the Reappointment of Howard Brown as the Fraternal Order of Police

Representation Trustee for the Term Ending June 30, 2022 (Rose) (+*)Page 99
q) Approve the Reappointment of Elizabeth M. Hewlett as the Prince George’s County

Commissioner to the Board of Trustees for the Term Ending June 30, 2022 (Rose) (+*)Pagel00
r) Employees’ Retirement System FY20 Operating Budget (Rose) (+*)Page 101
s) Adjustment to ERS-BOT Public Member Stipend (+*)Page 107

6. Officers’ Reports (11:15am.)
a) Executive Director’s Report (For Information Only)

Late Evaluation Report, April 2019 (+) Page 109
b) Secretary Treasurer (For Information Only)
MFD 3" Quarter Purchasing Statistics (+)Page 111
¢) General Counsel (For Information Only)
1. Litigation Report, January 2019 —FY 2019 (+) Page 147
2. Annual Legislative Update (+) Page 171
(+) Attachment (++) Commissioners Only (*) Vote (H) Handout (LD) Late Delivery




Item 2a.

<
/

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION
6611 Kenilworth Avenue -+ Riverdale, Maryland 20737

l
L

2
i

Commission Meeting
Open Session Minutes
May 1, 2019
For Combined April/May 2019 Meetings

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission met at the Prince George’s Parks and Recreation
Administration Office Auditorium in Riverdale, Maryland.

PRESENT
Prince George’s County Commissioners Montgomery County Commissioners
Elizabeth M. Hewiett, Chair Casey Anderson, Vice-Chair
Dorothy Bailey Gerald Cichy
William Doerner Norman Dreyfuss
Manuel Geraldo Natali Fani-Gonzalez
Tina Patterson
NOT PRESENT
A. Shuanise Washington
Chair Hewlett convened the meeting at 11:09 a.m.
ITEM | APPROVAL OF COMMISSION AGENDA

ACTION: Motion of Commissioner Geraldo to approve the amended Commission agenda
Seconded by Commissioner Doerner
9 approved the motion

ITEM 2 APPROVAL OF COMMISSION MINUTES
Open Session — March 13, 2019
ACTION: Motion of Commissioner Geraldo to approve the Commission minutes
Seconded by Commissioner Doerner
9 approved the motion

ITEM 3 GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS
a) Military Appreciation Month
b) Asian Pacific American Heritage Month
c) Jewish-American Heritage Month
d) National Fitness Month/Fitness Days in May — Commission Fitness week, May 12-18
e} National Prevention Week (mental and/or Substance Use Disorders), May 12-18

Chair Hewlett also noted it was Older Americans month, and acknowledged May 1 as May Day and Law Day.
ITEM 4 COMMITTEE MINUTES/BOARD REPORTS (For Information Onl

a) Executive Committee — Open Session — April 8, 2019
b) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Meeting — December 4, 2018

©



ITEM 5

ACTION AND PRESENTATION ITEMS

a)

b)

d)

Resolution #19-02, In Recognition and Appreciation of Hogan Lovells US LLP and Neal
Kumar Katyal for Distinguished Public Service (Gardner)
Approved without discussion.
ACTION: Motion of Geraldo to approve Resolution #19-02
Seconded by Fani-Gonzalez
9 approved the motion

Resolution #19-03. Refunds to M-NCPPC’s Appropriate Non-Departmental Accounts for
Fiscal Year 2019 Overpayments to M-NCPPC’s Group Insurance Fund (Zimmerman)
Approved without discussion.
ACTION: Motion of Bailey to approve Resolution #19-03

Seconded by Geraldo

9 approved the motion

Budget Reductions to meet County Executive’s Budget (Kroll)

Corporate Budget Director Kroll briefed Commissioners on the status of the proposed budget
reductions for bi-county operations and departments as presented to the Montgomery County
Planning, Housing and Economic Development (PHED) Committee. These proposed
reductions will be addressed on Monday May 6 at the Montgomery County Council meeting,
and again on May 9 at the Joint Council meeting at WSSC.

Commission-Wide IT Budget Adjustment — NeoGov Onboarding Project (Kroll
Mr. Kroll requested Commissioners approve a budgetary adjustment of $92,600 to fund the
implementation of NeoGov software which will be used by the bi-county offices to automate
the agency’s recruitment efforts. The project is supported by the M-NCPPC’s IT Council and
funded by the Prince George’s County Parks and Recreation Department, as they are the
largest beneficiary of an automated hiring process. In addition to authorizing the budget
adjustment, the Commission must authorize funds coming from Prince George’s operations
to fund a bi-county project.
ACTION: Motion of Geraldo to approve the adjustment.

Seconded by Fani-Gonzalez

9 approved the motion

Request for Use of Salary Savings
a. Department of Human Resources and Management (DHRM) (Bennett

Acting Executive Director Bennett has personnel savings due to unexpected retirements
and unanticipated position turnover. The Department is requesting a transfer of $375,000
to address priorities identified during discussions with both Planning Boards.
ACTION: Motion of Fani-Gonzlez to approve

Seconded by Geraldo

9 approved the motion

Commission Meeting Minutes — Open Session @ 2

May 1,2019



b.

Office of the General Counsel (Gardner)
General Counsel Gardner stated the Legal Department has personnel savings for FY19

due to a variety of staffing changes. The Department is requesting $627,500 to fund
temporary services, project studies, and issue rebates on legal fees paid by the
Montgomery County Parks Department and Prince George’s County Department of Parks
and Recreation.
ACTION: Motion of Geraldo to approve

Seconded by Patterson

9 approved the motion

Department of Finance (Zimmerman)

Secretary Treasurer Zimmerman stated the Finance Department has projected
approximately $200,000 in personnel savings for FY 19 due to detays in filling critical
positions. The Finance Department would use the savings to fund the Lawson Budgeting
and Planning (L.BP) Replacement and a transfer of funds to the IT unit.
ACTION: Motion of Geraldo to approve

Seconded by Bailey

9 approved the motion

Office of the Inspector General (Kenney)

Inspector General Kenney requested to transfer personnel savings of $10,000 to cover
identified expenses in the OIG work program.
ACTION: Motion of Bailey to approve

Seconded by Geraldo

9 approved the motion

f) Revisions to Practice 1-40, Organization and Functions of the Legal Department (Gardner)

General Counsel Gardner asked Commissioners to approve amendments to the Practice to
reflect current operations. The Practice established the authority of the General Counsel to
appoint a Deputy General Counsel. Commissioner Patterson asked about the timing of hiring
a Deputy General Counsel. General Counsel Gardner indicated hiring in FY 19 is

conceivable, particularly considering the salary lapse.
ACTION: Motion of Geraldo to approve

Seconded by Bailey
9 approved the motion

g) Acknowledge Elaine Stookey as the Bi-County Open Trustee to the Employees’ Retirement

System Board of Trustees for the term_ending June 30, 2021 (Rose)

Approved without discussion.
ACTION: Motion of Geraldo to approve

Seconded by Bailey
9 approved the motion

Commission Meeting Minutes — Open Session @ 3

May 1, 2019



h) 1-495/1-270 Managed Lanes Study Update (Rubin/Borden)

Special Project Manager Carol Rubin from Montgomery County Planning and Principal
Counsel Debra Borden from the Office of the General Counsel’s Land Use Team in Prince
George’s County were introduced to provide a briefing on the Maryland State Highway
Administration’s (SHA) proposal on the 1-495/1-270 Managed Lanes Study in anticipation of
the deadline for agency comments to the recommended alternatives retained for detailed
study (ARDS). Of the 15 Preliminary Alternatives, SHA recommended 7 move forward with
all the build alternatives including only managed (toll) lanes without any elements of
transportation demand management or transit. Ms. Rubin also introduced other members of
the team, including Maria Martin (Prince George’s Planning), Matt Harper (Montgomery
Parks), and Steve Aldridge (Montgomery Planning).

Ms. Borden said the SHA had been holding public hearings in both counties to describe and
discuss the seven ARDS and shared the interactive map the SHA developed to illustrate the
impacts from each. Except for the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)-required no-
build option, 6 ARDS involve only toll lanes. Ms. Rubin described differences between the
remaining alternatives, mostly based on their proposed operations. The ARDS do not
significantly differ in footprint and would not have a significant difference in impact to the
environment.

Ms. Rubin and Ms. Borden demonstrated the interactive map, which shows the impact for the
different ARDS in a satellite view-style map, which is a planning-level engineering study.
Without consideration of land use or transportations planning and other design issues, there is
no way to know the actual parkland impacts.

SHA will be selecting a private partner to design the project but will be required to complete
the Final Environmental Impact Statement (FEIS) before they do so. The private partmer
would be required to follow the limits of the EIS, or the EIS would have to be reopened. The
design has not taken into account overall planning factors such as land use planning,
economic development, or social justice review. Ms. Rubin asked for authority to
communicate these concerns to the SHA as early as possible.

Ms. Rubin laid out critical issues she wished Commissioners to consider, including:

¢ Proposed Managed Lanes access decisions appear to be based entirely on geographic
impact without consideration of the relationship to existing and future origin-
destination patterns, ptanned land use, economic development considerations social
equity or safe and efficient accesses to transit facilities.

e The ARDS recommendations do not include a social justice analysis as required by
NEPA.

¢ Impacts to parkland along 1-495 and I-270 have likely been underestimated due to
discrepancies in ownership/control along and including portions of highway.

e Public transportation must be considered as an integral element in design of the
preferred alternative.

Commission Meeting Minutes — Open Session @ 4

May 1, 2019



e Relocations on 1-495 and property impacts should include evaluation of whether
partial takings result in nonconforming properties under current environmental and
zoning laws.

s The benefits and impacts from any of the alternatives will be incomplete without a
local road system/interchange analyses, particularly given the selection of limited
access to the managed lanes.

Commissioners and staff discussed specific issues based on interchanges in the design.
Commissioner Dreyfuss said it is hard to raise questions about the impact until proposals
from the partner are reviewed. Ms. Rubin said dealing with issues at an earlier stage can be
useful, so the outside limits of the project are clear. The state will not want to re-open and
have a supplemental EIS. M-NCPPC’s comments will provide some certainty to the
communities that are impacted by the project. Chair Hewlett agreed, saying issues should be
flagged in advance so the partner can take them into their design beforehand, rather than need
to go back and change their design.

Commissioner Cichy suggested defining where the interchanges would be and let the
engineering firms provide the innovation to execute the plan within the parameters of the EIS.

Ms. Rubin described issues with right of way in specific areas in each county in that SHA
asserts that it owns that they do not. General Counsel Gardner discussed the Capper-
Crampton Act, which in the 1930s tasked M-NCPPC to acquire parklands and protect certain
watersheds. Commissioner Cichy noted that these areas can be developed, but extensive
mediation and approval is required. Ms. Rubin agreed, and said the National Capital Parks
Commission is the approving body to change or expand the current use.

Ms. Rubin explained that the SHA is underestimating the impact on private property and
parkland. Ms. Rubin said that 34 homes and four businesses within the study area are marked
as “displacements” by SHA. The team believes the number of properties that the SHA has
put forth publicly as displaced will grow substantially. Ms. Rubin said that while 34 homes
are on the total take list, many more homes and businesses would be impacted.
Commissioner Doerner asked about the limit or scope of what the M-NCPPC is doing, saying
whether SHA attempts a partial or full taking would need to be settled in a court of law. Ms.
Rubin replied the M-NCPPC’s involvement would be concerning parkland; she was listing
those as examples to illustrate the scope of the impact. General Counsel Gardner noted the
M-NCPPC also has a responsibility not only as a property owner, but as a planning advisor.

Ms. Rubin said the impact to parkland has been substantially underestimated, based on
discrepancies of ownership along, and including, portions of the highways. We do not agree
on what is under the SHA’s ownership and control versus the M-NCPPC’s and there are
limited resources to do the research. Mr. Harper agreed staff have seen clear discrepancies
between what SHA is identifying as theirs.

Ms. Rubin said NEPA suggests cooperating agencies assist in reaching conclusions on the
EIS record of decision. The SHA has only brought the M-NCPPC in as a cooperative agency

Commission Meeting Minutes — Open Session @ 5

May 1, 2019



because the agency owns so much parkland. She said the SHA has said it does not have any
interest in the agency’s input on Transportation or Land Use planning and does not care that
the M-NCPPC are the local experts. Ms. Rubin read from the SHA statement supporting this
assertion. The M-NCPPC is not being compensated for any planning consultation.

Commissioner Dreyfuss noted that every government agency has an objective and it is the
SHA'’s job to get the highway built. He said it should not be a surprise that the SHA wants to
get this done quickly and efficiently and avoid bringing other agencies in that will slow the
process down by bring up objections and problems. Ms. Rubin replied that it is the
Commission’s responsibility to advise on local land use and this project is relevant to the
growth of Montgomery and Prince George’s Counties. The SHA is making decisions that
completely disregard land use decisions and analyses approved by the County Councils and
M-NCPPC.

Ms. Rubin and Ms. Borden described several more examples of how SHA’s current designs
do not consider major local planned expansions that will be under way soon and their impact
to transportation planning, safety issues, economic development and social equity. Ms.
Borden spoke about the SHA’s design to end the project in Prince George’s County a half
mile west of Branch Avenue which would exclude the last five miles of [-495 in Maryland,
including exits for St. Barnabas Road, Oxon Hill Road, National Harbor, the interchange with
MD-295, and the Woodrow Wilson Bridge from the project. When asked about this, the

SHA responded that this portion of [-495 would be part of a future project that the
Commonwealth of Virginia will design and build. There are currently no plans for merging
the highways after the conclusion of the managed lanes construction and there is no guarantee
or expectation that the Commonwealth will build on Maryland property. Stopping the project
at Branch Avenue also ignores the county’s (and one of the state’s) largest economic engines,
National Harbor,

Chair Hewlett verified with Ms. Rubin that despite bringing these issues to the SHA’s
attention, they were dismissive. Ms. Rubin agreed, saying the SHA did not make the process
iterative when they looked at planning. They did not consider how to address it, and when
M-NCPPC staff brought it up, they ignored them. Ms. Rubin said staff thought the project
would be better planned if the Public Private Partnership (P3) knew about those land use
issues in advance of their design. Commissioner Doerner noted managed lanes access cannot
be everywhere. Designers will have to pick and choose and there are going to be winners and
losers. He suggested changing the way we talk about it and use language they are using. By
changing the pitch, such as framing it as a safety concern, rather than a planning concern, we
might have the same desired outcome.

Commissioner Patterson asked if, in the M-NCPPC’s communication with the SHA, we are
proposing alternative plans, or are we simply saying, “you can’t do this”? Ms. Rubin replied
that staff comments have been solution-oriented from a planning perspective. Commissioner
Patterson advised to take the emotion out of any responses, and lay out clearly, this is what
we anticipate will happen if we continue with these alternatives, and these are ways we
suggest mitigating them. Ms. Rubin agreed.

Commission Meeting Minutes — Open Session 6
May 1, 2019 °



Vice Chair Anderson stated he had been approached by Montgomery County
Councilmembers and staff and other stakeholders to assert the M-NCPPC'’s position as a
property owner to refuse to hand over land at all. Vice Chair Anderson noted it was his
position, that it is not appropriate for the M-NCPPC to make a judgment but must have the
County Council support or oppose the project. We should use that power only if the county
councils direct us to. It is entirely appropriate for, and he expects that, the County Councils
will ask the M-NCPPC’s advice on the project, as the local transportation and land use
authority, and we should bring any recommendations or modifications to them. The County
Councils will then make their decision, and it would then be the Commission’s responsibility
to carry them out.

Ms. Rubin also said none of the ARDS recommendations include a social justice analysis as
required under NEPA. Ms. Rubin said staff are pushing this particular issue forward.
Commissioner Doerner noted there were plenty of places where the SHA could have
examined that. Commissioner Geraldo agreed that Commissioners made those suggestions at
length. Ms. Rubin reported the SHA’s response is that they have not really studied the tolls.
Commissioner Bailey asked about the process to present a recommendation. By presenting
the recommendation in writing and within their deadlines, Ms. Rubin stated. The
recommendation would be followed up in discussion among the cooperating agencies. Ms.
Rubin noted the discussions have not been consensus-based, but more a matter of them telling
us what they are doing, and M-NCPPC staff commenting,.

Ms. Rubin said the SHA has eliminated public transit options from all ARDS. Excluding
transportation as an integral part of any plan is giving the wrong message to the P3. She said
the initial planning and message must include public transportation as an element. Just
allowing buses to use the managed lanes is not sufficient. Staff continues to push those
transit opportunities.

She said there needs to be an analysis of the benefits and impacts on local road systems and
access. The difficulty is that M-NCPPC does not model interstate highways and the state
does not integrate with local road systems. State planners and M-NCPPC planners need to
resolve this on a system-wide basis to mitigate the impact on our communities. Staff
response is to ask the SHA to let us assist as the local experts.

Chair Hewlett thanked Ms. Rubin, Ms. Borden and the team for their comprehensive work on
this project and bringing the various issues to Commissioners’ attention, adding they
wouldn’t have known about them without the team’s extensive analysis and pushback.
Commissioner Geraldo also thanked the team and added his concern regarding stopping the
managed lanes project at Branch Avenue. He said ignoring MGM and National Harbor
economic zone was senseless and expecting Virginia to finish it is unrealistic.

ITEM 6 OFFICERS’ REPORTS
a) Executive Director’s Report (For information only)
Employee Evaluations Not Completed by Due Date (March 2019}

Commission Meeting Minutes — Open Session 7
May 1, 2019



b) Secretary Treasurer (For information only).
Investment Report, Cctober 2018 - March 2019

¢) General Counsel (For information only)
Litigation Report, February-March 2019

Chair Hewlett asked for a motion to enter closed session at 12:55 p.m. Commissioner Geraldo moved,
Commissioner Patterson seconded. 9 approved the motion.

Pursuant to Maryland General Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, Section 3-305(b) (7) & (9),
a closed session is proposed to consult with counsel for legal advice, conduct collective bargaining discussions,
and consider matters that relate to negotiation.

Open session resumed at 2:00 p.m. There being no further business to discuss, the meeting ended at 2:00 p.m.

Ja{es F. Adams, SeniorAdmimistrative Specialist Anju &/Bennett, Acting Executive Director

Commission Meeting Minutes — Open Session 8
May 1, 2019



MARN

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION Itemda.

] | 6611 Kenilworth Avenue - Riverdale, Maryland 20737
— EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
‘ Lo June 5, 2019

On June 5, 2019, the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission’s Executive Committee met via
teleconference. Present were Chair Elizabeth M. Hewlett, Vice Chair Casey Anderson, and Acting Executive
Director Anju Bennett. Also present were:

Department Heads

Andree Green Checkiey, Director, Prince George’s County Planning

Darin Conforti, Acting Director, Prince George’s County Parks and Recreation

Adrian Gardner, General Counsel (departed 10:35)

John Nissel, Deputy Director, Montgomery County Parks (for Director Mike Riley)

Tanya Stern, Deputy Director, Montgomery County Planning (for Director Gwen Wright)
Joseph Zimmerman, Secretary-Treasurer

Presenters/Staff

Michael Beckham, Policy Manger, CPMO

Mazen Chilet, CIO

William Dickerson, Principal Counsel

Michael Doaks, Policy Analyst, CPMO

Tracey Harvin, Acting Corporate Policy and Management Operations {CPMO) Director
William Spencer, Human Resources Director

Acting Executive Director Bennett convened the meeting at 10:08 a.m.

ITEM 1a - APPROVAL OF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA

Discussion Approved without modification. Chair Hewlett moved approval; Vice Chair Anderson

seconded. 3 approved.

ITEM 1b - APPROVAL OF COMMISION MEETING AGENDA for June 19, 2019

Discussion Items to be added to the Commission Agenda:

¢ Public Member expense per diem for ERS Board of Trustees.

e Revised lapse spending memo and resulting budget transfer to move funds
into the Commission-wide IT project {Zimmerman)

{TEM 1c - ROLLING AGENDA FOR UPCOMING COMMISSION MEETINGS

Discussion Items to modify the Rolling Agenda:

e Add items for general announcements (July/Aug)

¢ Benefits Campaign on Telemedicine {July) (Secretary-Treasurer to confirm)

July Bond Sale(s) may move to September

Literacy Program Ceremony (September 20%, 2019)

Move CAFR to November or December (Secretary-Treasurer to confirm)

ITEM 2 - FEBRUARY 12, 2019 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
ACTION April 8, 2019, minutes approved w/o comment. Chair Hewlett moved approval; Acting
Executive Director Bennett seconded. 3 approved.

ITEM 3 — DISCUSSION/PRESENTATION ITEMS

ITEM 3a — Special Meeting of the Commission (Bennett)

Discussion Arrangements are being made for the special meeting of the full Commission on June
6, 2019. Chairs have talking points to move into the meeting from Planning Board,

©




along with language if needed to move into closed session. The meeting will be held
via teleconference in both Planning Board auditoriums and will be live streamed.

ITEM 3b - Ratification of Collective Bargaining Agreements (Bennett)

Discussion

Both FOP and MCGEO have ratified the tentative agreements presented to the
Commission on May 1, 2019. This will allow Resolutions on the terms to be adopted
by the Commission at the June meeting. Vice Chair Anderson shared his appreciation
for negotiations which were led by Acting Executive Director Bennett, stating she
deserves a huge amount of credit for the successful negotiations.

(Harvin)

ITEM 3c - Proposed Amendments to Practice 3-70, Authorization of Professional Membership Payments

Discussion

Acting Corporate Policy and Management Operations Director Harvin reviewed the
proposed amendments to the Practice, indicating the policy addresses authorized
coverage of professional memberships for employees, when such membership related
to the assigned work duties. Ms. Harvin covered the background for the existing
provisions, and summarized proposals which were developed based on discussions
with Department Heads.

Ms. Harvin introduced Mr. Beckham who described amendments to the Policy. Mr.
Beckham explained amendments broaden the authority of Department Heads to
authorize memberships, allow up to 100% coverage based on the benefits of the
membership to the agency, and clarify that decisions of Department Heads are final
and not grievable. Amendments also encourage the use of group membership
discounts when offered and clarify that employees may be required to repay
membership fees in the event the employee leaves within one year of the payment.

Acting Executive Director Bennett noted that proposed amendment #7, which
requires reports be provided to the Planning Board Chairs, is a duplicative effort as
Chairs already must approve memberships. Chair Hewlett and Vice Chair Anderson
agreed, and staff was asked to revise the policy to remove #7.

Vice Chair Anderson inquired whether a report could help assess if there are
organizations to which multiple employees are members, suggesting the agency might
negotiate lower rates for group memberships and related cost savings. Deputy
Director Nissel noted the agency negotiates discounts with organizations such as the
NRPA and the MRPA which saves a considerable amount. Deputy Director Stern
noted Montgomery Planning has group membership rates as well. Acting Executive
Director Bennett inquired whether the Secretary-Treasurer could provide information
on associations with multiple memberships. Secretary-Treasurer Zimmerman stated a
report would be provided to the Executive Committee.

Chair Hewlett inquired about the authorization process and payments, if employees
typically ask for advance or reimbursement. Acting Executive Director Bennett replied
the agency generally pre-pays membership dues, but employees can also be
reimbursed for dues, provided memberships have been preauthorized for business
needs.

Action/Follow-up

Chair Hewlett motioned approval of the revised Policy with the removal of
amendment 7; Vice Chair Anderson seconded. 3 approved.

Executive Committee Meeting — OPEN SESSION ( e ) Page 2

June 5, 2019




ITEM 3d - Investment Report - April 2019 (Zimmerman) (information item only)

Discussion Secretary Treasurer Zimmerman reported the M-NCPPC’s investment return is doing
very well at 2.3%,.

Pursuant to Maryland General Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, Section 3-305(b) (7) & (9), Chair
Hewlett moved to go into closed session to consult with counsel for legal advice. Acting Executive Director Bennett
seconded. The Executive Committee Meeting moved into closed session at 10:38 a.m. to discuss ltem 4a.

Open session resumed at 10:54 a.m. There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 10:54 a.m.

Ja esF. Adams Adminrstrative Program Specialist 11 nett Ktmg Executive Director

Executive Committee Meeting - OPEN SESSION @ Page 3
June 5, 2019



This page intentionally left blank.



‘ EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM Item 4c
The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission
REGULAR BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
MINUTES
Tuesday, March 5, 2019; 10:00 A.M.
ERS/Merit Board Conference Room

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission Employees' Retirement System Board of Trustees
met in the ERS/Merit Board Conference Room at its office in Riverdale, Maryland on Tuesday, March 5, 2019 and
was called to order at 10:00 a.m. by CHAIRMAN HEWLETT.

Board Members Present

Elizabeth M. Hewlett, Board of Trustees Chairman, Prince George’s County Commissioner

Gerald R. Cichy, Board of Trustees Vice Chairman, Montgomery County Commissicner

Anju A. Bennett, M-NCPPC Acting Executive Director, Ex-Officio

Howard Brown, FOP Represented Trustee

Melissa D. Ford, Prince George’s County Open Trustee

Pamela F. Gogol, Mentgomery County Public Member

Rick Liu, Montgomery County Open Trustee In 10:08 a.m.
Amy Millar, MCGEO Represented Trustee In 10:03 a.m.
Sheila Morgan-Johnson, Prince George's County Public Member

Barbara Walsh, Bi-County Open Trustee

Joseph C. Zimmerman, CPA, M-NCPPC Secretary-Treasurer, Ex-Officio

ER ff Pr
Andrea L. Rose, Administrator

Heather D. Van Wagner, Senior Administrative Specialist
Sheila S. Joynes, Accounting Manager

Presentationg

Groom Law Group - Alexander P. Ryan, Counsel

M-NCPPC Legal Department — Amy Foster, Associate General Counsel

Wilshire Associates - Bradley A. Baker, Managing Director; Marteli McDuffy, Senior Analyst; and, Ned McGuire,
CFA, FSA, FRM, Managing Director

Other(s) Present
Elaine A. Stcokey

ITEM1 APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA

Approval of the March 5, 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda
Minutes of Open Session, February 5, 2019

Minutes of Closed Session, February 5, 2019 (Confidential}

Minutes of Administrative Functions, February 5, 2019 (Confidential)
Disbursements Granted Report — January 2019

moowp

CHAIRMAN HEWLETT revised the March 5, 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda to include
an Item 2.D. Resolution for Rick Liu.

ACTION: MS. BENNETT made a motion, seconded by MS. GOGOL to approve
the Consent Agenda that includes the revised March 5, 2019 Board of
Trustees Meeting Agenda. The motion PASSED unanimously (8-0).
MR. BROWN was cut of the room. (Motion #19-10)

MARCH 5, 2019 MINUTES, AS APPROVED, @

AT THE JUNE 4, 2019 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING



ITEM 2

ITEM 3

ITEM 4

ITEM 5

CHAIRMAN'’S ITEMS
MS. MILLAR arrived at 10:03 a.m.

MS. GOGOL handed out a report of highlights from the Opal Group’s Investment Education
Symposium.

On behalf of the Board of Trustees, CHAIRMAN HEWLETT, presented Barbara Walsh and Rick
Liu with Board resolutions for their service on the Employees’ Retirement System Board of
Trustees. The Board wishes them much success in all their future endeavors.

MISCELLANEOUS

CHAIRMAN HEWLETT informed the Board, Elaine A. Stookey won the Bi-County Open Trustee
seat by acclamation. Ms. Stookey will serve for the remainder of the term ending June 30, 2020.

ACTION: VICE CHAIRMAN CICHY made a moticn, seconded by MS.
BENNETT to approve the appointment of Elaine A. Stookey as the
new Bi-County Open Trustee for the remainder of the term ending
June 30, 2020. The motion PASSED unanimously (8-0). MR.
BROWN was out of the room. (Motion #1S-11)

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Administration & Personnel Oversight Committee — February 14, 2019 Meeting

Committee Chairman MS. WALSH said the Administration & Personnel Oversight Committee
("Personnel Committee”) discussed options for the engagement of an actuarial consulting firm.
The Personnel Committee agreed Cheiron was most familiar with the ERS' data, calculations,
issues, and results, having recently completed the actuarial valuation and actuarial equivalence
factor audits. ERS Administrator Andrea Rose pointed out Cheiron's multi-tiered internal control
progess with various checks and balances which includes all client work being audited every three
years by Cheiron’s own independent review specialists. These audits are performed without the
regular consulting team’s involvement and involves independent programming of all benefit
pravisions and assumptions te confirm the calculations and reports; and, to ensure quality control
standards were adhered to. This additional assurance of its work allows Cheiron to offer no limit
on liability.

The Personnel Committee agreed the ERS had an immediate need for actuarial services for
calculations related to transfers and the purchase of credited service window and issuing a new
Request for Proposal was time-intensive for staff. Therefore, the Personnel Commitiee
recommends the Beard engage Cheiron for a three-year period ending May 1, 2022 and requests
the Chairman grant a Waiver of Competition due to the immediate need for actuarial consulting
services. CHAIRMAN HEWLETT agreed to grant the Waiver of Competition which was vetted by
legal counsel with Board approval.

ACTION: MS. MILLAR made a motion, seconded by VICE CHAIRMAN CICHY to
approve the engagement of Cheiron for actuarial consulting services
for a three-year period ending May 1, 2022 and that the Chairman
grant a Waiver of Competition due to the immediate need for actuarial
consulting services. The motion PASSED unanimously (9-0). MR.
BROWN was out of the room. (Motion #19-12)

CLOSED SESSION
At 10:08 a.m. CHAIRMAN HEWLETT requested a motion to go into Closed Session under

MARCH 5, 2019 MINUTES, AS APPROVED,
AT THE JUNE 4, 2019 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING

authority of the General Provisions “ of the Annotated Code of Maryland Section 3-



3

305(b)(13) to comply with a specific constitutional, statutory, or judicially imposed requirement
that prevents public disclosure about a particular proceeding or matter and to discuss matters
that are subject to Section 4-335 of the General Provisions Article of the Maryland Annotated
Code, which prevents public disclosure of confidential commercial or financial information to
discuss proprietary information of Golub Capital Partners and Capital Group; and, Section 3-
305(b)(7) to consult with counsel to obtain legal advice on particular legal matters and to preserve
attorney-client privilege.

ACTION: VICE CHAIRMAN CICHY made a motion, seconded by MS. WALSH to
go into Closed Session. The motion PASSED unanimously (9-0). MR.
BROWN was out of the room. (Motion #19-13)

MR. LIU arrived at 10:08 a.m.

During Closed Session, the following matters were discussed:

1. Golub Capital Partners update on recent risk disclosures.
The Administraticn & Personnel Oversight Committee’s Confidential Report of
February 14, 2019.

3. Capital Group’s Amendment to the Account's Fee Schedule.

4. Consultation with legal counsel cn particular legal matters.

At 10:40 a.m. the Board moved back into Open Session.

ITEM G

ITEM 7

ACTION: MS. GOGOL made the motion, seconded by MS. BENNETT to ratify
the actions taken in Closed Session. The motion PASSED
unanimously (11-0). (Motion #19-17)

REPORT OF THE ADMINISTRATOR
Andrea Rose presented the Administrator's Report dated February 21, 2019.

Ms. Rose requested Board approval for a 2.4% Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) for retirees and
beneficiaries effective July 1, 2019. In accordance with the Provisions of the Employees’
Retirement System, the COLA was calculated using data from the Cansumer Price Index for All
Urban Consumers (CPl U) at December 2018. All retirees and beneficiaries receiving annuities
for at least six months are eligible for the COLA.

ACTION: VICE CHAIRMAN CICHY made the motion, seconded hy MS,
BENNETT to approve a 2.4% Cost-of-Living Adjustment effective July
1, 2019 for eligible retirees and beneficiaries in accordance with the
provisions of the Employees’ Retirement System. The motion PASSED
unanimously (11-0). {Motion #18-18)

MANAGER REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS

Wilshire Assoclates — Asset Liability Valuation Study and Quarterly Performance Review
Presentaticns by Bradley A. Baker, Managing Director; Martell McDuffy, Senior Analyst; and,
Ned McGuire, CFA, FSA, FRM, Managing Director

Bradley Baker presented Wilshire's Asset Liability Valuation (ALV) study. The ERS’ last ALV was
completed in the first quarter of 2016. Since that time, the ERS has experienced strong absolute
and relative investment returns. The actuarial assumed rate of return has declined over the past
several years and currently stands at 6.90%. This has been a conscious and strategic decision

MARCH 5, 2019 MINUTES, AS APPROVED,
AT THE JUNE 4, 2019 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING

based on the plan's funded level and It@rm return assumptions. The current asset allocation



4

is considered efficient from both a return and risk perspective, with the 10- and 30-year expected
returns being 7.5% and 8.1%, respectively, with expected risk of 11.1%.

The ALV includes five (5) portfolio optimization options at various levels of risk, return, and
liquidity. Option 1 provides a lower expected return and risk, albeit at an expected return of 7.1%
which is above the actuarial assumed rate of return of 6.9%; Options 2 through 4 all provide a
lower expected risk while not materially sacrificing expected return to the portfolio; and, Option 5
provides a higher expected return and risk compared to the current portfolic.

From an asset class perspective, Wilshire is comfortable with the current emerging market
exposure, but recommends carving out a dedicated allocation to Emerging Market Debt for
additional diversification. This is currently imbedded within the Global Opportunistic Fixed Income
allocation. Following questions and discussion, CHAIRMAN HEWLETT asked the Investment
Monitoring Group to further review the ALY study, Wilshire's recommendation, and return with a
recommendation for the Board.

MS. MORGAN-JOHNSON left the meeting at 12:06 p.m.

The Board was provided with an Executive Summary of Investment Performance for quarter
ending December 31, 2018. Mr. Baker reported on the fund’s performance for the quarter ending
December 31, 2018. The ERS’ total fund return was -5.26% (net of fees) for the quarter,
outperforming the actual policy index return of -6.84%. The ERS fund return was -2.02% for the
one-year ended, 7.62% for the three-years ended, 4.74% for the five-years ended, and 8.82% for
the ten-years ended December 31, 2018 versus the actual policy index which returned -4.43%,
5.87%, 3.58% and 7.59%, respectively. The total market value through December 31, 2018 was
$896.5 million.

Mr, Baker said all managers are performing as expected and pointed-out the ERS did better than
its peers primarily due to performance of private equity.

Mr. Baker informed the Board that Mark Brubaker left Wilshire. Mr, Brubaker was the ERS’ first
pension consultant from Wilshire Associates in 2001 and continued as a back-up consultant until
his departure. Currently, Mr. Baker is the lead consultant and Martell McDuffy, Senior Analyst, is
the back-up consultant.

The Board of Trustees meeting of March 5, 2019 adjourned at 12:28 p.m.

Respectfully,
R o Alie
Heather D. Van Wagner Angirea L. Rose
Senior Administrative Specialist Administrator

MARCH &, 2019 MINUTES, AS APPROVED,

AT THE JUNE 4, 2019 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING



The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission

u EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM Item 4d

SPECIAL BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
MINUTES
Friday, April 26, 2019; 9:00 A.M.
ERS/Merit Board Conference Room
or
via Conference Call

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees
met in the ERS/Merit Board Conference Room at its office in Riverdale, Maryland and via teleconference call on
Friday, April 26, 2019 and was called to order at 9:04 a.m. by CHAIRMAN HEWLETT.

Board Members Present

Elizabeth M. Hewlett, Board of Trustees Chairman, Prince George's County Commissioner
Melissa D. Ford, Prince George’s County Open Trustee

Pamela F, Gogol, Montgomery County Public Member

Amy Millar, MCGEO Represented Trustee

Sheila Morgan-Johnson, Prince George’s County Public Member

Elaine Stookey, Bi-County Open Trustee

Joseph C. Zimmerman, CPA, M-NCPPC Secretary-Treasurer, Ex-Officio

Board Members Not Present

Gerald R. Cichy, Board of Trustees Vice Chairman, Montgomery County Commissioner
Anju A, Bennett, M-NCPPC Acting Executive Director, Ex-Officio

Howard Brown, FOP Represented Trustee

ERS Staff Present

Andrea L. Rose, Administrator
Heather D. Van Wagner, Senior Administrative Specialist

Presentations
M-NCPPC Legal Department — William C. Dickerson, Principal Counsel
ITEM 1 APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 26, 2019 SPECIAL BOARD OF
TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA
ACTION: MS. GOGOL made a motion, seconded by MR. ZIMMERMAN to
approve the April 26, 2019 Special Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda.
The motion PASSED unanimously (7-0). (Motion #19-19)
ITEM 2 CLOSED SESSION

At 9:06 a.m. CHAIRMAN HEWLETT requested a motion to go into Closed Session under authority
of the General Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland Section 3-305(b)(7) to
consult with counsel to obtain legal advice on particular legal matters and to preserve attorney-
client privilege.

ACTION: MS. MORGAN-JOHNSON made a motion, seconded by MR. ZIMMERMAN
to go into Closed Session. The motion PASSED unanimously (7-0).
(Motion #19-20)

During Closed Session, the following matters were discussed:

1. Consultation with legal counsel on perqular legal matters.
April 26, 2019 MINUTES, AS APPROVED, @

AT THE JUNE 4, 2019 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING



At 9:13 a.m. the Board moved back into Open Session.

ACTION: MR. ZIMMERMAN made the motion, seconded by MS. FORD to ratify
the actions taken in Closed Session. The motion PASSED
unanimously {7-0). {Motion #19-23)

The Board of Trustees meeting of April 26, 2019 adjourned at 9:14 a.m.

Respectfully,

Andrea L. Rose
Senior Administrative Specialist Administrator

April 26, 2019 MINUTES, AS APPROVED,

AT THE JUNE 4, 2018 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING



Item 5a

' MONTGOMERY COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT
THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION M-NCPPC

Item No.
Date: 06/19/19

Resolution of Adoption of the Approved Veirs Mill Corridor Master Plan

@ lessica McVary, Planner Coordinator, Area 2 Division, Jessica.McVary@montgomeryplanning.org, {301) 495-4723

Nancy Sturgeon, Master Planner Supervisor, Area 2 Division, Nancy.Sturgeon@montgomeryplanning.org, (301) 495-1308

Carrie Sanders, Chief, Area 2 Division, Carrie.Sanders@montgomeryplanning.org, (301) 495-4653

Completed: 06/05/19

Recommendation
Approve the Resolution of Adoption.

Summary

Attached for your review and approval is the M-NCPPC Resolution Number 19-05 to adopt the Veirs Mill
Corridor Master Plan. The Montgomery County Council, sitting as the District Council, approved the
Veirs Mill Corridor Master Plan by Resolution Number 19-76 on April 23, 2019. The Montgomery County
Planning Board approved the adoption of the Veirs Mill Corridor Master Plan by Resolution Number 19-
052 on May 23, 2019.

Attachments
1. Montgomery County Planning Board Resolution No. 19-052; M-NCPPC Resolution No. 19-05

2. Montgomery County Council Resolution No. 19-76



VN

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION
:l 6611 Kenilworth Avenue - Riverdale, Maryland 20737

‘_‘

MCPB NO. 19-052
M-NCPPC NO. 19-05

|

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission, by virtue of
the Land Use Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, is authorized and empowered, from
time to time, to make and adopt, amend, extend and add to The General Plan (On Wedges and
Corridors) for the Physical Development of the Maryland-Washington Regional District Within
Montgomery and Prince George's Counties; and

WHEREAS, the Montgomery County Planning Board of The Maryland-National Capital
Park and Planning Commission, pursuant to procedures set forth in the Montgomery County
Code, Chapter 33A, held a duly advertised public hearing on April 26, 2018 on the Public
Hearing Draft Veirs Mill Corridor Master Plan, being also an amendment to portions of the
approved and adopted 1989 Master Plan for the Communities of Kensington-Wheaton; 1992
North Bethesda-Garrett Park Master Plan, as amended; 1994 Aspen Hill Master Plan; The
General Plan (On Wedges and Corridors) for the Physical Development of the Maryland-
Washington Regional District Within Montgomery and Prince George’s Counties, as amended;
the 2013 Countywide Transit Corridors Functional Master Plan; the 2018 Master Plan of
Highways and Transitways, as amended; and the 2018 Bicycle Master Plan.

WHEREAS, the Montgomery County Planning Board, after said public hearing and due
deliberation and consideration, on December 13, 2018, approved the Planning Board Draft Veirs
Mill Corridor Master Plan, recommended that it be approved by the District Council, and
forwarded it to the County Executive on December 20, 2018 for recommendations and analysis;
and

WHEREAS, the Montgomery County Executive reviewed and made recommendations
on the Veirs Mill Corridor Master Plan and forwarded those recommendations and analysis to
the District Council on February 5, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the Montgomery County Council sitting as the District Council for the
portion of the Maryland-Washington Regional District lying within Montgomery County, held a
public hearing on February 7, 2019, wherein testimony was received concerning the Planning
Board Draft Veirs Mill Corridor Master Plan; and

WHEREAS, the District Council, on April 23, 2019 approved the Planning Board Draft
Veirs Mill Corridor Master Plan subject to the modifications and revisions set forth in Resolution

No. 19-76. :

Approved for leEal sufficiency

@ M-NCPPC Office of the General Counsel



NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Montgomery County Planning Board
and The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission do hereby adopt the said
Veirs Mill Corridor Master Plan, together with the General Plan for the Physical Development of
the Maryland-Washington Regional District within Montgomery and Prince George's Counties,
as amended, and as approved by the District Council in the attached Resolution No. 19-76; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that copies of said Amendment must be certified by The
Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission and filed with the Clerk of the
Circuit Court of each of Montgomery and Prince George’s Counties, as required by law.

ok e ok ok o ok ok e ok

This is to certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 19-052 adopted
by the Montgomery County Planning Board of The Maryland-National Capital Park and
Planning Commission at its regular meeting held on Thursday, May 23, 2019 in Silver Spring,
Maryland, on motion of Commissioner Cichy, seconded by Commissioner Patterson, with a vote
of 4 to 0, with Chair Anderson and Commissioners Fani-Gonzalez, Cichy, and Patterson voting
in favor of the motion, and Vice Chair Dreyfuss absent.

N

Casey Andeérson, Chair
Montgomery County Planning Board



ATTACHMENT 2

Resolution No.: 19-76
Introduced: April 23, 2019
Adopted: April 23, 2019

COUNTY COUNCIL FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND
SITTING AS THE DISTRICT COUNCIL FOR THAT PORTION
OF THE MARYLAND-WASHINGTON REGIONAL DISTRICT

WITHIN MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND

Lead Sponsor: County Council

SUBJECT: Approval of December 2018 Veirs Mill Corridor Master Plan

1. On December 20, 2018, the Montgomery County Planning Board transmitted to the County
Executive and the County Council the December 2018 Planning Board Draft Veirs Mill
Corridor Master Plan.

2. The December 2018 Planning Board Draft Veirs Mill Corridor Master Plan contains the text
and supporting maps for an amendment to portions of the approved and adopted 1989 Master
Plan for the Communities of Kensington-Wheaton; 1992 North Bethesda-Garrett Park Master
Plan, as amended; and 1994 Aspen Hill Master Plan. It also amends The General Plan (On
Wedges and Corridors) for the Physical Development of the Maryland-Washington Regional
District in Montgomery and Prince George’s Counties, as amended; the 2013 Countywide
Transit Corridors Functional Master Plan; the Master Plan of Highways and Transitways, as
amended; and the Bicycle Master Plan.

3. On February 7, 2019, the County Council held a public hearing on the December 2018
Planning Board Draft Veirs Mill Corridor Master Plan. The Master Plan was referred to the
Council’s Planning, Housing, and Economic Development Committee for review and
recommendations.

4. On February 5, 2019, the Office of Management and Budget transmitted to the County Council
the Executive’s Fiscal Impact Statement for the December 2018 Planning Board Draft Veirs
Mill Corridor Master Plan.

5. On February 25, March 4, and March 7, 2019, the Planning, Housing, and Economic
Development Committee held worksessions to review the issues raised in connection with the
Planning Board Draft Veirs Mill Corridor Master Plan.

6. On March 26, 2019, the County Council reviewed the Planning Board Draft Veirs Mill
Corridor Master Plan and the recommendations of the Planning, Housing, and Economic

Development Committee.



Page 2 Resolution No.: 19-76

Action

The County Council for Montgomery County, Maryland, sitting as the District Council for that
portion of the Maryland-Washington Regional District in Montgomery County, Maryland,
approves the following resolution:

The Planning Board Draft Veirs Mill Corridor Master Plan, dated December 2018, is approved
with revisions. County Council revisions to the Planning Board Draft Veirs Mill Corridor Master
Plan are identified below. Deletions to the text of the Plan are indicated by [brackets], additions
by underscoring. All page references are to the December 2018 Planning Board Draft Veirs Mill
Corridor Master Plan.

Page 2: Add a new paragraph after the last paragraph under “1.5 Community Outreach” as follows:

Recognizing that there are barriers such as language and geographic access to the decision-
making process that may prevent people in the immigrant community from playing an active
role in important issues that affect their daily lives, Council staff engaged collaboratively with
key partners and the communities around the Veirs Mill Corridor to create and publicize
bilingual outreach brochures, engage in informational sessions about the Master Plan before
the hearing, and assist with the process of signing up to testify. The Council provided
simultaneous English to Spanish translation and interpretation services for audience members
provided through headsets. These efforts are a direct result of the Latino Civic Project,
launched by the Council in 2012, to strengthen the civic participation of the immigrant
community in the decision-making process in a linguistic and culturally-proficient manner,
which resulted in the Veirs Mill Corridor Master Plan public hearing’s attendance being
reflective of the diversity of the corridor as residents were able to testify in both English and

Spanish and share their recommendations on the Plan.

Page 8: Revise Table 1 to include the following short-term recommendation after #16 per the
Council decision:

Provide a pedestrian and bicvcle overpass of Veirs Mill Road for users of the Matthew Henson
Trail.

Page 8: Revise Table 1, #10 to include the following short-term recommendation per the Council
decision:

[Consider the elimination of the proposed interchange at Veirs Mill and Randolph Road from
the Master Plan of Highways and Transitways. If such an interchange is constructed, it must
be constructed in such a way that would not inhibit pedestrian, bicycle and transit accessibility.
In addition, it should minmimize disruption to local businesses and homes.] Confirm the
proposed interchange at Veirs Mill Road and Randolph Road in the Master Plan of Highways
and Transitways.

®



Page 3 Resolution No.: 19-76

Page 9: Delete #17 in Table 2 as follows:
[Provide a grade-separated crossing at the Matthew Henson Trail |
Page 13: Amend the second bullet under “2.2.1 Land Use and Zoning Goals” as follows:

Preserve, [and] enhance and provide markct-affordable housing through partnerships with
public, private and non-profit organizations.

Page 13: Amend the second bullet under “2.2.2 Land Use and Zoning Reccommendations™ as
tollows:

[Retain the majority| Balance the retention of existing multi-family residential developments
as a continued source of market-affordable housing while producing new affordable units
through redevelopment of existing multi-family properties, including Rock Creek Woods and

Halpine View.

Page 15: Revise Map 3 to reflect the Council decisions.
Page 17: Revise Map 5 to reflect the Council decisions.
Page 28: Modify the third bullet under “2.4.1 Housing Goals” as follows:

Prioritize MPDUs as a top public benefit [point] in the jcommercial-residential townhouse]
Commercial Residential Town {CRT) zones.

Page 30: Insert a new paragraph after the last paragraph under “2.5 Transportation” as follows:

The Veirs Mill Corridor Master Plan recommends an amendment to the 2016-2020
Subdivision Staging Policy to create a unique intersection delay standard of 100 seconds per
vehicle at signalized intersections on Veirs Mill Road between the Wheaton Central Business
District Policy Area and the Rockville City Policy Area. Due to the high level of fatalities and
severg crashes on Veirs Mill Road, there is particular urgency to prioritizing road safety over

congestion,

Page 31: Amend the “Veirs Mill Road” subsection in “2.5.2 Street Network™ as follows:

This plan proposes to maintain the existing right-of-way of Veirs Mill Road, which varies
between 100 feet and 175 feet based on the existing residential scrvice roads. The right-of-way
is generally characterized by four conditions [(shown in Figures 10 through 13)]. including:
(1) no residential service roads (Figure 10); (2) one service road on either the north or south
(Figure 11); (3) [one service road on the south;] and (]|4]3) service roads on both the north and
the south (Figures 12 and 13). Figure 12 represents the recommended cross-section in locations
adjacent to residential uses, while Figure 13 represents the recommended cross-section at areas
with commercial land use. The ultimate cross-section of Veirs Mill Road will be determined




Page 4 Resolution No.: 19-76

with the design and implementation of long-term redevelopment or infrastructure projects.
such as bus rapid transit (BRT).

Page 32: Amend the note associated with Figure 10 as follows:

Left turns at Pendleton Drive and left turns at Newport Mill Road would be [are] prohibited
due to constraints associated with the right-of~way and the Hammond Wood National Register
District.

Page 36: Revise Map 6 to reflect the Council decisions.
Page 37: Amend the third bullet under “2.5.3 Street Network Recommendations” as follows:
Reduce target speeds on Veirs Mill Road to 35 miles per hour, outside the Road Code Urban

Area, to improve safety. Define the areas between Havard Street and Bushey Drive on Veirs
Mill Road as a Road Code Urban Area with a target speed of 25 miles per hour.

Page 37: Amend the fourth bullet under ““2.5.3 Street Network Recommendations™ as follows:

Explore opportunities to improve compliance with the existing bus- and right-turn only lanes,
including strategies such as enhanced or illuminated signage, striping, colored pavement
demarcating bus lanes, pavement material and automated [speed] enforcement.

Page 37: Amend the sixth bullet under “2.5.3 Street Network Recommendations” as follows:

[Limit left turn lanes to a single lane where feasible at signalized intersections to improve
safety of all road users.] As a goal. the number of additional lanes at signalized intersections
should be minimized so that crossing distances and exposure of pedestrians and bicyclists to

traffic when crossing the road are also minimized. Wherever it is determined to be beneficial
to safety and does not create unacceptable congestion levels as defined by the applicable

Subdivision Staging Policy congestion standard, the number of left turn lanes at a signalized
intersection should be limited to one. Where dual left turn lanes are provided. consider the
implementation of strategies to mitigate the speed of left-turning vehicles and to mitigate the
additional width of the road that pedestrians and bicyclists must cross.

Page 37: Amend the tenth bullet under “2.5.3 Street Network Recommendations™ as follows:

If the Montgomery County Department of Recreation’s administrative office site on Bushey
Drive is redeveloped, extend Gannon Road northwest as a business district street, as shown in
Figure 14, from its current terminus west of Bushey Drive to provide a connection between
Gannon Road and Colie Drive. Montgomery County should consider funding the extension of
Gannon Road to maximize the potential for development of affordable housing on the site.

Page 38: Revise Table 3 to reflect the Council decisions.

®



Page 5 Resolution No.: 19-76

Page 39: Amend “Notes for Table 3: (1)” as follows:

The minimum recommended right-of-way (ROW) includes residential service roads along
segments of Veirs Mill Road. The minimum ROW may not include land needed for spot
improvements, such as but not limited to local bus or BRT stations, protected intersections and
other non-auto facilities, auxiliary travel lanes such as turn lanes, or areas needed for future
grade separation projects.

Page 40: Amend the fourth sub-bullet under the first bullet as follows:

In the [long-term| short term, provide a [grade-separated crossing] pedestrian and bicycle
overpass of Veirs Mill Road for users of the Matthew Henson Trail [and preserve a protected
at-grade crossing.] Independent of the provision of an overpass, safe at-grade crossing
opportunities of Veirs Mill Road must also be provided in this vicinity.

Page 42: Amend the first sub-bullet under “2.5.7 Bicycle Network Recommendations™ as follows:

In the short term, develop an interim continuous bicycle network along the residential service
roads of Veirs Mill Road and on parallel streets that provide a combination of facilities,
including new sidepaths, neighborhood greenways and connections to existing trails. (Refer to
Map 7.)

Page 49: Amend the second bullet under “2.5.9 Transit Network Recommendations™ as follows:

Implement the short-term BRT alternative identified through the 2016 Veirs Mill Road Bus
Rapid Transit Study to provide improved transit service to residents and employees of the plan
area. With the implementation of the short-term BRT alternative, construct [all] sidewalks and
interim bikeways to provide safe and convenient access to BRT stations.

Page 52: Amend the second sentence under “2.5.10 Bicycle and Pedestrian Priority Areca
(BiPPA)” as follows:

An area centering on Veirs Mill Road and Randolph Road was included as a Montgomery
County BiPPA.

Page 54: Amend the last sentence of the first paragraph under “2.5.12 Intersections” as follows:

Notably absent from these intersections are components that emphasize and highlight the
pedestrian and bicyclist domains, including pedestrian countdown signals, leading pedestrian

intervals, high-visibility crosswalks, pedestrian-scale lighting and median refuge islands.

Page 54: Delete the third sentence of the second paragraph under “2.5.12 Intersections™ as follows:
[A grade-separated interchange at this intersection is inconsistent with the overall

transportation goals of this plan, which seek to improve conditions for pedestrians, bicyclists
and transit users on Veirs Mill Road and the surrounding communities. ]



Page 6 Resolution No.: 19-76

Page 54: Amend the third paragraph under “2.5.12 Intersections™ as follows:

[If such an] When the interchange is constructed, it must be constructed in such a way that
would not inhibit pedestrian, bicycle and transit accessibility. In addition, it should minimize
disruption to local businesses and homes.

Page 54 Amend the second bullet under “2.5.13 Intersection Recommendations™ as follows:

[Remove] Wherever it is determined to be beneficial to safety, remove the channelized right-
turn lanes, particularly at the intersection of Veirs Mill Road and Connecticut Avenue, if

feasible. [to improve safety for pedestrians, bicyclists, transit users and motorists.] If
channelized right-turn lanes prove to be necessary, design the lanes to limit the exposure of
vulnerable road users, including implementing measures to reduce the speed of turning
vehicles so that vehicles yield, as required, and/or consider implementation of no right-turn on
red restrictions to improve safety for pedestrians and bicyclists crossing the tumn lane.

Page 54: Amend the second sentence of the third bullet under “2.5.13 Intersection
Recommendations™ as follows:

Retrofits can include curb extensions, reduced corner radii, accessible pedestrian signals,
leading pedestrian intervals, high visibility crosswalks on each intersection leg, pedestrian-
scaled lighting and median refuge islands, where feasible.

Page 54: Amend the last bullet under “2.5.13 Intersection Recommendations” as follows:

[Consider the elimination of] Confirm the proposed interchange at Veirs Mill Road and
Randolph Road [from] in the Master Plan of Highways and Transitways. |If such an
interchange is constructed,] The construction of the interchange must not be prioritized over
the construction of Bus Rapid Transit on Veirs Mill Road, and it must be constructed in [such]
a way that would not inhibit pedestrian, bicycle and transit accessibility. In addition, it should
minimize disruption to local businesses and homes, as conceptually shown in Figure 18.

Page 54: Amend Figure 18 to reflect the Council decisions.

Page 54: Insert a new bullet at the end of section “2.5.13 Intersection Recommendations™ as
follows:

Amend the 2016 Subdivision Staging Policy to create an intersection delay standard of 100
seconds per vehicle at signalized intersections on Veirs Mill Road between the Wheaton
Central Business District Policy Area and the Rockville City Policy Area. Due to the high level
of fatalities and severe crashes on Veirs Mill Road, there is particular urgency to prioritizing
road safety over congestion there.




Page 7 Resolution No.: 19-76

Page 60: Amend the third sub-bullet under the first bullet of “2.7.2 Environmental
Recommendations™ as follows:

Establish a minimum of 30 percent tree canopy cover for new or retrofitted surface parking
areas, where feasible.

Page 60: Amend the third bullet under “2.7.2 Environmental Recommendations™ as follows:
Reduce energy consumption and [increase] improve air quality through the following:
Page 65: Amend Table 7 to reflect the Council decisions.

Page 68: Amend the second sentence under “Postwar Boom of Residential Development” and add
four paragraphs as follows:

The Servicemen’s Readjustment Act of 1944, commonly known as the G.1. Bill of Rights,
offered subsidized housing loans for veterans and Federal Housing Administration (FHA)
programs provided low-cost mortgages for homeowners, ensuring a steady market for home
sales.

The FHA programs stimulated residential construction but further propagated the use of racial
restrictive_covenants. The FHA encouraged and often required racial covenants to meet
appraisal standards prior to insuring low-interest loans for the property. While the Supreme
Court ruled that racial restrictive covenants were not legally enforceable in 1948, these
covenants continued to be written in deeds, and social enforcement sustained their
effectiveness. The FHA did not amend their rules to deny properties with_racial restrictive
covenants for mortgage insurance until December 1949. However, private racial restrictive
covenants continued to proliferate the language of segregation until the 1968 Fair Housing Act
made the use of such covenants illegal.

The Veirs Mill Village and Twinbrook subdivisions, as well as others including Connecticut
Gardens, established racial restrictive covenants between 1947 and 1949 to prohibit the
migration of minority groups into their neighborhoods. The covenant for Veirs Mill Village
stated the following:

“All lots are intended for use by the Caucasian race. No race of nationality other than those for
whom the premises are intended, shall use or occupy any building on any lot, except that this
covenant shall not prevent occupancy by domestic servants of a different race or nationality
emploved by an owner or tenant.”!

The amendment to the FHA rules in 1949 that prohibited the inclusion of racial restrictive
covenants mav have limited the proliferation of such language throughout the Plan area. Many
of the subdivisions likely received FHA-backed mortgage insurance and initial research
revealed no racial restrictive covenants in the 1950s.

! Montgomery County Land Records, “Viers Mill Village Company, Protective Covenants,” Liber 1199, Folio 43,

http://mdlandrec.net.




Page 8 Resolution No.: 19-76

Page 75: Amend the second bullet under “3.1.1 Land Use and Zoning” as follows:

Rezone the Montclair Manor Townhouses from RT-12.5 to the Townhouse [Low] Medium
Density [(TLD)] (TMD) zone.

Page 77: Amend Map 16 to reflect the Council decisions.

Page 83: Amend the first bullet under “Department of Recreation Administrative Offices” as
tollows:

Rezone the Department of Recreation administrative offices site (4010 Randolph Road and the
vacant parcel) from R-60 to |[CRN 1.0, C-0.0, R-1.0, H-65] CRN 1.0, C-0.5, R-1.0. H-65 to
allow the construction of medium density residential uses and neighborhood-serving
commercial uses near the commercial center.

Page 85: Amend Map 19 to reflect the Council decisions.
Page 86: Amend Map 20 to reflect the Council decisions.
Page 96: Amend the first sentence of the second bullet under “Recommendation™ as follows:

Support a future application for the Commercial|-]Residential Neighborhood|-]Floating Zone
(CRNF) for [the single-family residential properties that directly abut 12607 and 12615 Veirs
Mill Road, bordered by Adrian Street to the north and Robindale Drive to the east] five
properties: 12700 Robindale Drive, 4710 Adrian Street, 4714 Adrian Street, 12700 Weiss
Street and for the abutting outlot behind 12700 Weiss Street.

Page 99: Amend the fifth paragraph under “3.4.1 Land Use and Zoning” as follows:

With the redevelopment of the Rock Creek Woods Apartments, this plan recommends
maximizing residential development with a minimal amount of commercial density to fulfill
the requirements of the Optional Method Development of the CRT zone. An optional method
project that includes residential dwelling units should provide a minimum of 15 percent
Moderately Priced Dwelling Units (MPDUs) and five percent market-affordable units for up
to 30 years. This plan also prioritizes two- and three-bedroom units for public benefit points.
With redevelopment, a minimum of 20 percent of the units should be two-bedroom units and
five percent of the units should be three-bedroom units. Priority should be given to existing
residents for the two- and three- bedroom units and the units under market-affordable rents.
Redevelopment of the Rock Creck Woods Apartments should also incorporate an improved
frontage on Veirs Mill Road.

Page 100: Insert a new sentence at the end of the third paragraph as follows:

After the review and approval of the limited preliminary plan amendment, Montgomery
County and the property owner confirmed that the road extension was conveyed by a deed in

®




Page 9 Resolution No.: 19-76

fee simple. As such. the Aspen Hill Road extension cannot be abandoned but rather must be
disposed of through the County’s disposition process.

Page 100: Amend the first sentence of the fourth paragraph as follows:

[Consistent with the previous master plans, the] The Veirs Mill Corridor Master Plan
[continues to support the abandonment| supports the return of the Aspen Hill Road extension
[to further facilitate the synergistic redevelopment of Halpine View, Parkway Woods and
Halpine Hamlet.} to the Halpine View property through Montgomery County’s disposition

process in exchange for the requirement to provide a minimum of 30 percent of the dwelling
units attributable to the density of the 1.9-acre parcel in the form of MPDUSs.

Page 100: Amend the first bullet under “Recommendation” as follows:

Rezone the Rock Creek Woods Apartments from R-20 to CRT 1.25, C-0.25, R-1.25, H-85.
Maximize residential development on the site, with a minimal amount of commercial density
to fulfill the requirements of the Optional Method Development of the CRT zone. An optional
method project that includes residential dwelling units should provide a minimum of 15 percent
Moderately Priced Dwelling Units (MPDUs) and five percent market-affordable units under a
rental agreement for up to 30 years. This plan also prioritizes two- and three-bedroom units for
public benefit points. With redevelopment, a minimum of 20 percent of all units must be two-
bedroom units and five percent of all units must be three-bedroom units. Priority should be
given to existing residents for the two- and three- bedroom units and the units under market-
affordable rental agreements.

Page 100: Amend the second bullet under “Recommendation” as follows:

Rezone the Halpine View Apartments|, Parkway Woods and Halpine Hamlet] from R-30 to
CRT 1.25, C-0.25, R-1.25, H-85 to allow increased residential density near the Twinbrook
Metrorail Station and the future bus rapid transit station.

Page 100: Amend the first sub-bullet under the second bullet under “Recommendation” as
follows:

The plan recommends maximizing residential development with a minimal amount of
commercial density to fulfill the requirements of the Optional Method Development of the
CRT zone|, with the following public benefits]. An optional method project that includes
residential dwelling units should:

- Provide a minimum of 15 percent MPDUs [as the highest priority public benefit.];

- Provide [5] 10 percent market-rate affordable units [pursuant to] under a rental agreement
[with the Department of Housing and Community Affairs for twenty years. Redevelopment
shall be phased to ensure maintenance and/or creation of a minimum of 5 percent market-
rate affordable units.] for up to 30 vears. To achieve no net loss in market-rate affordable
units, each phase of development should provide a number of affordable units (MPDUs

®




Page 10 Resolution No.: 19-76

plus market-affordable units under rental agreement) equal to the number of units being

removed.

- Provide a range of unit sizes, including those that accommodate larger families. [At] With
redevelopment, a minimum [17.5] of 20 percent of all [new] units must be two-bedroom<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>